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CHAPTER 01
 QUE ES LA NACE?
Un vocabulario comun para describir la actividad de una empresa.

Un vocabulario compartido
La NACE -nomenclatura estadistica de actividades economicas en la Comunidad Europea-
es la clasificacion estadistica comun de actividades economicas de la Union Europea. A
cada tipo de actividad productiva realizada dentro de la UE se le asigna un codigo
para que las estadisticas recopiladas en diferentes paises, por diferentes
instituciones, en diferentes idiomas, puedan agruparse y compararse sin ambiguedad.

La clasificacion es mantenida por Eurostat, la oficina estadistica de la Union
Europea, en cooperacion con los institutos nacionales de estadistica de los Estados
miembros. Es utilizada por las administraciones publicas, las oficinas nacionales de
estadistica, las camaras de comercio, las autoridades fiscales, los registros
mercantiles, los proveedores de datos privados y -cada vez mas- por cualquier sistema
de software que necesite entender lo que realmente hace una empresa.

La edicion actual cubierta por este manual es la NACE Rev. 2.1, adoptada en 2023 y
aplicada a los datos estadisticos a partir del ano de referencia 2025.

Note: La NACE es una clasificacion de actividades, no de productos, ocupaciones o
formas juridicas. Un carpintero autonomo y una carpinteria de cien personas comparten
la misma clase NACE si realizan el mismo trabajo.

Actividad, no producto
La distincion mas importante que hay que interiorizar es que la NACE clasifica las
actividades -lo que hace una organizacion- en lugar de los productos, bienes,
ocupaciones o formas juridicas. Los productos tienen su propia clasificacion (CPA en
la UE, HS/CN para el comercio). Las ocupaciones se encuentran en la ISCO. Las formas
juridicas son nacionales. La NACE se centra en el proceso: hornear pan, desarrollar
software, transportar personas por aire.

Esto significa que un pequeno carpintero autonomo y una carpinteria de cien personas
comparten la misma clase NACE si realizan la misma actividad. Tambien significa que
una empresa que produce bicicletas para la venta y una empresa que alquila bicicletas
por horas estan en clases diferentes, aunque la bicicleta sea esencial para ambas.

Donde encontrara la NACE
Toda empresa registrada en un registro mercantil de la UE lleva al menos un codigo
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derivado de la NACE. Las autoridades fiscales utilizan codigos nacionales basados en
la NACE para dirigir las categorias de IVA y las normas especificas del sector. Los
bancos los utilizan para la puntuacion de riesgos en materia de lucha contra el
blanqueo de capitales. Las encuestas estadisticas los usan para definir su poblacion
objetivo. Los financiadores de investigacion los emplean para describir los sectores
elegibles. Las bolsas de trabajo, las redes de publicidad, las agencias de credito y
los proveedores de datos B2B dependen, directa o indirectamente, de la NACE.

En resumen: si un sistema en cualquier parte de Europa necesita saber lo que hace una
empresa, hablara algun dialecto de la NACE.

Source: Foreword;  1 Introduction, pp. 11-18 - Eurostat, NACE Rev. 2.1 (2025), KS-GQ-24-007-EN-N.
Read this chapter online: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#chapter-1
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CHAPTER 02
 QUIEN GOBIERNA LA NACE?
Eurostat, un reglamento del Consejo y 27 institutos nacionales de estadistica.

La base juridica
La NACE se establecio mediante el Reglamento (CE) n.o 1893/2006 del Parlamento Europeo
y del Consejo, que la hizo vinculante para todos los Estados miembros para la
elaboracion de estadisticas europeas. Dicho reglamento fue modificado en 2023 para
introducir la NACE Rev. 2.1, la version actual.

Dado que la NACE se establece mediante un reglamento y no mediante una directiva, se
aplica directa e identicamente en todos los Estados miembros: los parlamentos
nacionales no la transponen, la implementan.

Eurostat y los institutos nacionales de estadistica
La custodia diaria recae en Eurostat, la oficina estadistica de la Union Europea con
sede en Luxemburgo. Eurostat publica el manual oficial, mantiene las tablas de
correspondencia con y desde revisiones anteriores y con clasificaciones de fuera de la
UE, y coordina las revisiones con los institutos nacionales de estadistica (INE) de
los 27 Estados miembros.

Cada INE - el INE en Portugal, el INSEE en Francia, el DESTATIS en Alemania, el CBS en
los Paises Bajos, el ISTAT en Italia, y asi sucesivamente - traduce la clasificacion a
su propio idioma y, en la mayoria de los casos, la amplia con un quinto digito para
crear una clasificacion nacional de actividades adaptada a las necesidades de
informacion locales. El CAE en Portugal, el NAF en Francia, el WZ en Alemania, el SBI
en los Paises Bajos y el ATECO en Italia son todas extensiones nacionales directas de
la NACE.

Note: La NACE es la columna vertebral de la UE. NAF, WZ, CAE, SBI, ATECO, SKD y sus
homologos son dialectos nacionales que la comparten - los cuatro primeros digitos de
cualquiera de ellos son, por construccion, una clase NACE.

Alineacion internacional
La NACE no se elabora de forma aislada. Esta plenamente alineada con la Clasificacion
Industrial Internacional Uniforme de todas las Actividades Economicas (ISIC) de las
Naciones Unidas, y su estructura detallada esta disenada para que cada clase NACE se
agrupe limpiamente en una clase ISIC. Esta alineacion permite que las estadisticas de
la UE se agreguen con las estadisticas oficiales del resto del mundo sin perdidas de
traduccion.
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Source:  1.2 Legal basis;  1.3 International context, pp. 13-17 - Eurostat, NACE Rev. 2.1 (2025), KS-GQ-24-007-EN-N.
Read this chapter online: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#chapter-2

  2026 TEKSOMA Technologies - nacebridge.eu - Reuses Eurostat NACE Rev. 2.1 under the EC reuse policy

Live: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#chapter-2 Page 6 of 42

https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#chapter-2
https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#chapter-2
https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#chapter-2


NACEBridge - The NACE Handbook Chapter 03 - Por que existe la NACE

CHAPTER 03
POR QUE EXISTE LA NACE
Comparabilidad, registros mercantiles, administracion tributaria, investigacion.

El problema de la comparabilidad
Cada pais elabora estadisticas economicas para sus propios fines: desgloses del PIB,
recuentos de empleo, indices de produccion industrial, encuestas de demografia
empresarial. Sin una clasificacion compartida, las cifras no pueden sumarse, restarse
o compararse: las "activites informatiques" francesas y la "Informationstechnologie"
alemana abarcan perimetros superpuestos pero diferentes, y cualquier total
transfronterizo duplica tacitamente o excluye subsectores enteros.

La NACE es la principal respuesta a ese problema dentro de la Union Europea. Cuando
una estadistica francesa y una estadistica alemana citan la misma clase NACE, se
refieren -por construccion- a la misma actividad.

Registros mercantiles y uso administrativo
Mas alla de las estadisticas puras, los codigos derivados de la NACE estan ahora
incrustados en el tejido administrativo de la Union. Cada registro mercantil de la UE
almacena un codigo de actividad principal derivado de la NACE para cada unidad
juridica registrada. Las autoridades del IVA los utilizan para aplicar normas
especificas del sector. Los regimenes de seguridad social los utilizan para calcular
las tasas de cotizacion especificas de la industria. Las camaras de comercio los
utilizan para organizar a sus miembros. El Banco Europeo de Inversiones los utiliza
para seleccionar las inversiones elegibles.

Uso en el sector privado
Las agencias de calificacion crediticia, los bancos y las aseguradoras utilizan los
codigos NACE para la puntuacion de riesgos sectoriales. Las plataformas de marketing,
las redes de anuncios y los proveedores de datos B2B los utilizan para la segmentacion
de audiencias. Los sistemas de contratacion publica los utilizan para estructurar los
catalogos de proveedores. Los sistemas de IA los utilizan cada vez mas como una
caracteristica canonica y de baja cardinalidad para describir una empresa.

El valor que la NACE ofrece en todos estos entornos es el mismo: un conjunto pequeno,
estable, exhaustivo y mutuamente excluyente de categorias en las que todos estan de
acuerdo.

Note: Pequenas, estables, exhaustivas, mutuamente excluyentes. Esas cuatro propiedades
son las que hacen buena una clasificacion, y lo que la NACE esta disenada para
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proteger a traves de sus revisiones.

Source:  1.1 Purpose;  1.4 Uses of NACE, pp. 11-13, 17-18 - Eurostat, NACE Rev. 2.1 (2025), KS-GQ-24-007-EN-N.
Read this chapter online: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#chapter-3
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CHAPTER 04
COMO SE ESTRUCTURA LA NACE
Seccion   Division   Grupo   Clase, y el quinto digito nacional.

Cuatro niveles jerarquicos
La NACE es una jerarquia estricta con cuatro niveles. Cada actividad se situa
exactamente en una clase en el nivel mas bajo, y cada clase se integra exactamente en
un grupo, una division y una seccion - sin superposiciones, sin doble adscripcion.

Los cuatro niveles son:

- Seccion - 21 dominios amplios identificados por una sola letra, de la A a la U (por
ejemplo, A Agricultura; C Industria manufacturera; J Informacion y comunicaciones).

- Division - 88 agrupaciones de nivel intermedio identificadas por un codigo de dos
digitos (por ejemplo, 62 Programacion informatica, consultoria y actividades
relacionadas).

- Grupo - 272 agrupaciones mas especificas identificadas por un codigo de tres digitos
(por ejemplo, 62.0 Programacion informatica, consultoria y actividades relacionadas).

- Clase - 658 categorias de ultimo nivel identificadas por un codigo de cuatro digitos
(por ejemplo, 62.01 Actividades de programacion informatica).

Anatomia de un codigo
Un codigo de clase NACE siempre tiene el formato DD.CC - dos digitos, un punto, dos
digitos mas. Los dos digitos antes del punto identifican la division; el primer digito
despues del punto identifica el grupo dentro de esa division; y el ultimo digito
identifica la clase dentro de ese grupo.

Asi, el 62.01 se descompone en: division 62 (Programacion informatica, consultoria y
actividades relacionadas), grupo 62.0 (mismo titulo - el unico grupo de la division),
clase 62.01 (Actividades de programacion informatica). La seccion J no forma parte del
codigo en si, pero esta implicita en el numero de la division: las divisiones 58-63 se
encuentran todas bajo la seccion J.

Note: El codigo 62.01 es siempre la misma actividad: programacion informatica. A
partir de esa clase, los sistemas nacionales se ramifican - PT 62010, FR 62.01Z, DE
62.01.0, NL 62.01 - pero todos se remontan al 62.01.
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El quinto digito nacional
El Reglamento se detiene en los cuatro digitos. Los institutos nacionales de
estadistica son libres - y, en la practica, universally eligen - de extender la ultima
clase con un quinto digito que recoja subactividades de interes nacional. Aqui es
donde residen los dialectos nacionales: la NAF de Francia anade una letra final
(6201Z), la WZ de Alemania anade un quinto digito numerico (62.01.0), la CAE de
Portugal comprime a un codigo numerico de cinco digitos (62010), la SBI de los Paises
Bajos utiliza un quinto digito decimal (62.01).

La "invariante" critica, garantizada por el reglamento, es que los cuatro primeros
digitos de cualquier codigo nacional son, por construccion, una clase NACE. Esto es lo
que posibilita la traduccion transfronteriza: eliminando el quinto digito, se vuelve a
la columna vertebral de la UE.

Notas explicativas
Cada clase incluye una nota explicativa oficial que describe lo que la clase incluye y
- fundamentalmente - lo que excluye. Las clausulas de exclusion a menudo indican la
clase a la que pertenece realmente la actividad excluida. Estas notas son el arbitro
cuando dos clases parecen encajar ambas: son, en efecto, la jurisprudencia de la NACE.

Source:  2 Structure, pp. 19-34 - Eurostat, NACE Rev. 2.1 (2025), KS-GQ-24-007-EN-N.
Read this chapter online: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#chapter-4
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CHAPTER 05
REVISIONES Y EL SALTO A LA REV. 2.1
Como cambia la NACE con el tiempo, y que se movio entre la Rev. 2 y la Rev. 2.1.

Por que se producen las revisiones
Las economias evolucionan. Aparecen nuevas industrias, otras se fusionan o
desaparecen, y subsectores que antes eran marginales crecen lo suficiente como para
merecer su propia clase. Una clasificacion estadistica que no evoluciona con la
economia pierde silenciosamente precision: las actividades completamente nuevas se
agrupan en clases genericas de "otras", y las series temporales dejan de significar lo
que solian.

Para que la NACE siga siendo util sin desestabilizar a ningun usuario indirecto, las
revisiones son deliberadas, poco frecuentes y coordinadas con la revision
correspondiente de la ISIC por parte de la ONU. La Rev. 1 llego en 1993, la Rev. 1.1
en 2002, la Rev. 2 en 2006 (aplicada a partir de 2008), y la Rev. 2.1 fue adoptada en
2023 y se aplica a partir del ano de referencia 2025.

Actualizacion NACE 2025: que cambia con la Rev. 2.1
A partir del ano de referencia 2025, la estadistica europea pasa de NACE Rev. 2
(vigente desde 2008) a NACE Rev. 2.1. El codigo de clase de cuatro digitos mantiene su
forma habitual - la mayoria de las clases conserva su numero - pero algunas
actividades se renombran, dividen, fusionan o crean.

Los cambios NACE 2025 mas visibles afectan a las plataformas digitales, los centros de
datos y servicios en la nube, la generacion de energia renovable, la reparacion y
reutilizacion, el tratamiento de residuos y la sanidad y servicios sociales. Los
institutos nacionales republican sus subclases locales de 5 digitos (NAF, WZ, CAE,
ATECO, CNAE, SBI, PKD, ...) en la misma fecha: el codigo local de una empresa puede
cambiar aunque la actividad no lo haga.

NACEBridge expone ambas revisiones en paralelo y toda conversion transfronteriza se
apoya en la tabla de correspondencia oficial de Eurostat entre Rev. 2 y Rev. 2.1.

Note: El ano de referencia 2025 es el primero en el que la Rev. 2.1 es obligatoria.
Los datos historicos permanecen en Rev. 2: no los renumeres y guarda siempre la
revision junto al codigo.

Que cambio en la Rev. 2.1
La Rev. 2.1 es una revision menor - la estructura se mantuvo y la gran mayoria de las
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clases permanecen inalteradas. Las principales adiciones y ajustes se dirigen a
actividades que estaban subrepresentadas o mal clasificadas bajo la Rev. 2:

- servicios mediados por plataformas (mercados, trabajo por encargo, operadores de la
economia colaborativa),

- centros de datos, infraestructura en la nube y servicios digitales especializados,

- reparacion y reutilizacion de bienes, en linea con la politica de economia circular,

- generacion de energia renovable y equilibrio de la red, separados de la produccion
generica de electricidad,

- actividades de tratamiento y reciclaje de residuos, reestructuradas para una mayor
granularidad,

- actividades de atencion sanitaria y social, refinadas para reflejar las necesidades
de informacion postpandemia.

Note: Un codigo de la Rev. 2 no es siempre un codigo de la Rev. 2.1. Eurostat publica
una tabla de correspondencia oficial que asigna cada clase de la Rev. 2 a una o mas
clases de la Rev. 2.1; algunas asignaciones se dividen, otras se fusionan.

Conexion de datos historicos
Para cualquiera que mantenga una serie temporal que abarque el cambio, la regla
practica es: nunca renumerar los puntos historicos, y siempre almacenar la revision
junto con el codigo. NACEBridge hace exactamente esto - cada clase en nuestros datos
lleva su ano de revision, y las consultas entre revisiones se resuelven a traves de la
tabla de correspondencia oficial mantenida por Eurostat.

Source:  1.5 Revision policy; Annex - Rev. 2   Rev. 2.1 correspondence, pp. 15, 380+ - Eurostat, NACE Rev. 2.1 (2025), KS-GQ-24-007-EN-N.
Read this chapter online: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#chapter-5
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CHAPTER 06
VARIANTES NACIONALES
NAF, WZ, CAE, SBI, ATECO, SKD - y como se relacionan con la NACE.

El contrato de compatibilidad
Todas las clasificaciones nacionales de actividades de la UE estan vinculadas por el
mismo contrato con la NACE: los cuatro primeros digitos son, y deben seguir siendo,
una clase NACE. Los institutos nacionales de estadistica pueden ampliar la clase de
cuarto nivel con un quinto digito (o letra), renombrar las clases al idioma local y
anadir notas explicativas adaptadas a la economia local - pero no pueden crear un
nuevo codigo de cuatro digitos que no exista en la NACE, y no pueden reutilizar un
codigo NACE existente para una actividad diferente.

Esto es lo que hace posible la traduccion transfronteriza sin una tabla de traduccion
para cada par de paises: la columna vertebral compartida de cuatro digitos es el
ancla.

Guia de campo de los sistemas mas grandes
- Francia - NAF (Nomenclature d'activites francaise). Anade una letra final a la clase
NACE de cuatro digitos (6201Z, 4711D). Mantenido por el INSEE.

- Alemania - WZ (Klassifikation der Wirtschaftszweige). Anade un quinto digito
numerico separado por un punto (62.01.0, 47.11.1). Mantenido por DESTATIS.

- Portugal - CAE (Classificacao Portuguesa das Actividades Economicas), actualmente
CAE-Rev. 4. Se comprime en un codigo numerico de cinco digitos (62010, 47111).
Mantenido por el INE.

- Paises Bajos - SBI (Standaard Bedrijfsindeling). Anade un quinto digito decimal
(62.01, 47.11.1). Mantenido por la CBS.

- Italia - ATECO. Anade un quinto digito numerico (62.01.00 a 62.01.99). Mantenido por
el ISTAT.

- Espana - CNAE (Clasificacion Nacional de Actividades Economicas). Extension numerica
de cuatro digitos (6201). Mantenido por el INE.

- Eslovenia - SKD (Standardna klasifikacija dejavnosti). Anade un quinto digito
numerico. Mantenido por el SURS.
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Hay muchos mas - cada Estado miembro de la UE, mas varios paises del EEE y candidatos,
mantienen su propia variante.

Leyendolos juntos
En la practica, una empresa que opera a traves de las fronteras - o un proveedor de
datos que consolida datos de varios paises - necesita moverse con fluidez entre estos
sistemas. La regla es simple: para traducir cualquier codigo nacional a cualquier otro
codigo nacional, primero hay que descender al ancla NACE comun de cuatro digitos, y
luego expandir a las subclases de quinto digito del pais de destino.

Esto es precisamente lo que NACEBridge hace internamente, y lo que las rutas /convert
y /cousins exponen como una sola llamada API.

Note: Primero anclar, despues expandir. Cada traduccion transfronteriza de codigos de
actividad se reduce a una busqueda NACE de 4 digitos mas una expansion de subclase del
pais de destino.

Source:  1.3 International context; national implementation notes, pp. 15-18 - Eurostat, NACE Rev. 2.1 (2025), KS-GQ-24-007-EN-N.
Read this chapter online: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#chapter-6
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CHAPTER 07
LECTURA Y ASIGNACION DE UN CODIGO
La regla de la actividad principal, la toma de decisiones descendente, los errores comunes.

Actividad principal
Una unidad empresarial puede realizar muchas actividades a la vez: una panaderia
tambien puede tener una pequena cafeteria; una carpinteria puede instalar lo que
fabrica; una empresa de software puede alojar lo que desarrolla. La NACE asigna una
unica clase por unidad, basandose en la actividad principal de la unidad -la actividad
que mas contribuye al valor anadido de la unidad.

Valor anadido, no volumen de negocios. El volumen de negocios es una aproximacion
conveniente cuando no se dispone de datos de valor anadido, pero el principio es el
valor anadido: cuanto del trabajo y el capital propios de la unidad produjeron el
resultado observado.

El metodo descendente
Cuando varias clases candidatas son plausibles, la NACE prescribe un procedimiento de
decision descendente: primero se elige la seccion ganadora (comparando el valor
anadido entre secciones), luego la division ganadora dentro de esa seccion, despues el
grupo ganador y, por ultimo, la clase ganadora. Esto evita que una pequena actividad
nicho arrastre a toda la unidad a una clase no representativa simplemente porque esa
clase es muy especifica.

Note: Descendente significa: elegir primero el padre ganador y luego descender. Nunca
elija una clase muy especifica solo porque encaja perfectamente -primero compruebe que
su seccion padre realmente es la ganadora.

Ejemplo practico: una cafeteria tostadora de cafe
Una unica unidad juridica tuesta cafe, vende granos enteros al por mayor a
restaurantes y posee una cafeteria en la planta baja. Tres actividades: fabricacion de
productos de cafe (division 10.83), comercio al por mayor de bebidas (46.34) y
servicios de comidas y bebidas (56).

Aplicando el metodo descendente: primero se compara el valor anadido a nivel de
seccion -seccion C (Industria manufacturera), seccion G (Comercio al por mayor y al
por menor), seccion I (Hosteleria). Supongamos que la cafeteria produce mas valor
anadido que el tueste y el comercio al por mayor combinados. Gana la seccion I.
Descendemos: la division 56 gana por definicion. Grupo 56.1 (Restaurantes y puestos de
comidas moviles). Clase 56.10.
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Toda la unidad se clasifica como 56.10, aunque la actividad de tueste este realmente
presente y pueda tener su propia linea de volumen de negocios en las cuentas.

Errores comunes
- Confundir producto con actividad. Una empresa que vende software no es
automaticamente una empresa de software: si solo revende, pertenece al comercio al por
mayor/menor; si desarrolla, pertenece al 62.01.

- Utilizar el digito nacional final para decidir. Los paises a veces ofrecen una
subclase de quinto digito muy especifica que parece describir perfectamente la
empresa. Eso esta bien, pero solo despues de que la clase de cuatro digitos se haya
establecido mediante el metodo descendente.

- Registrar una unidad juridica frente a una unidad local. Los codigos NACE se aplican
a las unidades estadisticas. Una sociedad holding con filiales en diferentes sectores
obtiene un codigo que refleja la actividad de la holding, no el agregado de sus
filiales.

Source:  3 Rules of classification, pp. 35-55 - Eurostat, NACE Rev. 2.1 (2025), KS-GQ-24-007-EN-N.
Read this chapter online: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#chapter-7
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CHAPTER 08
USAR LA NACE CON HERRAMIENTAS MODERNAS
Un breve recorrido por las herramientas en linea, los asistentes de IA y las descargas - con indicaciones para desarrolladores.

Herramientas en linea
El sitio NACEBridge ofrece un punado de pequenas herramientas que cubren casi
cualquier duda cotidiana de un emprendedor, analista, periodista o funcionario. Buscar
encuentra clases por palabra clave; Descodificar explica un codigo que ya tiene;
Primos lista las clases vecinas para confirmar una eleccion limitrofe; Convertir
traduce un codigo nacional al equivalente en otro pais de la UE; y Rejilla muestra
toda la jerarquia de un vistazo. Todas son gratuitas y sin cuenta.

Asistentes de IA
Si usa un asistente de IA moderno - ChatGPT, Claude, Cursor y similares - puede
responderle directamente sobre la NACE usando este sitio como fuente. Puede preguntar,
en lenguaje corriente, cosas como " que clase NACE cubre un carrito de cafe movil en
Portugal?" y obtener una respuesta que cite el codigo correcto. Para la mayoria de
lectores es la forma mas facil de trabajar con la NACE: sin formularios, sin
descargas, solo una conversacion.

Descargas
Para lectura offline, estudio o archivo, este manual esta disponible en PDF y en EPUB
desde la portada del manual. El manual oficial de Eurostat - fuente primaria de cada
capitulo - tambien esta espejado alli, a un clic.

Note: Todo en NACEBridge es gratuito para leer, enlazar e incrustar. Los planes de
pago solo elevan los limites de uso para accesos automatizados; la clasificacion en si
es infraestructura publica europea.

Para desarrolladores
Si construye software que necesita consultar codigos NACE de forma programatica,
NACEBridge expone una API REST y un servidor MCP para herramientas de IA. Los detalles
- endpoints, autenticacion, limites, SDK y ejemplos - estan en la documentacion para
desarrolladores en /docs. Este manual se mantiene deliberadamente en el nivel
conceptual.

Source: Cross-reference: NACEBridge API docs - Eurostat, NACE Rev. 2.1 (2025), KS-GQ-24-007-EN-N.
Read this chapter online: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#chapter-8
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APPENDIX A
SOURCES & ATTRIBUTION
Where every claim in this handbook comes from, how it was derived, and how you may reuse it.

A.1  Primary source
This handbook is a plain-language companion to the official Eurostat NACE manual.
Every substantive statement - the four-level structure, the anchoring rules, the
revision history, the classification principles - is derived from a single primary
source published by the European Commission's statistical office.

NACE Rev. 2.1 - Statistical classification of economic activities in the European
Community: Eurostat, Manuals and guidelines series, 2025 edition. Publication code
KS-GQ-24-007-EN-N. ISBN 978-92-68-19443-4. doi:10.2785/4407311. -
https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/products-manuals-and-guidelines/-/ks-gq-24-007

Ramon - Eurostat's classifications server: Machine-readable NACE code lists,
explanatory notes, and correspondence tables between NACE Rev. 2, Rev. 2.1, ISIC Rev.
4, and ISIC Rev. 5. -
https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/ramon/nomenclatures/index.cfm?TargetUrl=LST_NOM_DTL&StrNom=NACE_REV2_1

A.2  Legal basis
NACE is not a suggestion. It is EU statistical law, and any handbook that speaks to
"who governs it" must cite the acts that establish it. Two instruments matter:

Regulation (EC) No 1893/2006: The European Parliament and Council regulation that
established NACE Rev. 2 as the mandatory classification for European business
statistics. - https://eur-lex.europa.eu/eli/reg/2006/1893/oj

Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2023/137: Amends Regulation (EC) No 1893/2006 to
introduce NACE Rev. 2.1 with effect from reference year 2025. -
https://eur-lex.europa.eu/eli/reg_del/2023/137/oj

A.3  International alignment
NACE is the European view of a global taxonomy. Its top two levels are aligned by
treaty with the United Nations Statistics Division's ISIC. Cross-border comparisons
and correspondence tables both defer to these UN publications.

ISIC Rev. 4: International Standard Industrial Classification of All Economic
Activities, Rev. 4. United Nations, 2008. Series M, No. 4/Rev. 4. -
https://unstats.un.org/unsd/classifications/Econ/isic
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ISIC Rev. 5: Draft international standard aligned with NACE Rev. 2.1. Adopted by the
UN Statistical Commission in 2023. - https://unstats.un.org/unsd/classifications/Econ

A.4  National variants
Where this handbook names national classifications - CAE (Portugal), NAF (France), WZ
(Germany), SBI (Netherlands), and their equivalents across the EU27 - the underlying
code lists come from each Member State's national statistical institute. NACEBridge
mirrors those lists and keeps them aligned with the Eurostat backbone.

Portugal - CAE Rev. 4: Instituto Nacional de Estatistica (INE).

France - NAF Rev. 2 / 2025: Institut national de la statistique et des etudes
economiques (INSEE).

Germany - WZ 2025: Statistisches Bundesamt (Destatis).

Netherlands - SBI 2025: Centraal Bureau voor de Statistiek (CBS).

All other EU Member States: Respective national statistical institutes, mirrored via
NACEBridge Market Intelligence.

A.5  Reuse and license
The primary source is reused under the European Commission's reuse policy. Commission
Decision 2011/833/EU allows reuse of documents produced by the Commission and Eurostat
for both commercial and non-commercial purposes, provided the source is acknowledged
and the meaning is not distorted.

This handbook - the plain-language text, the illustrations, the code samples, and the
software that renders it - is   TEKSOMA Technologies. It is distributed free of charge
under the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International licence (CC BY 4.0). You may
copy, redistribute, translate, or adapt it, provided you credit NACEBridge and
preserve the citation to Eurostat.

Commission Decision 2011/833/EU: Reuse of Commission documents. Recital and articles
govern the reuse of the Eurostat manual quoted throughout this handbook. -
https://eur-lex.europa.eu/eli/dec/2011/833/oj

CC BY 4.0: Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International - applies to the derivative
text, layout, and code of this handbook. -
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https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/

A.6  Editorial method
The eight chapters were written by re-reading the corresponding sections of
KS-GQ-24-007-EN-N and producing a shorter, plainer restatement in the same order the
manual presents them. No claim in the body of any chapter is invented; every claim is
traceable to the page range printed at the foot of that chapter ("Source:  ... pp. ...").

Where the primary source is ambiguous or silent - for example, on how to use NACE
programmatically, or on the practical mechanics of cross-border code conversion - the
handbook says so explicitly, and cites NACEBridge's own API documentation instead of
the manual.

Translations into the 22 other official EU languages were produced by machine
translation (Google Gemini via the Lovable AI Gateway) and marked with a
translationStatus banner. English is the source of truth; where a translation and the
English disagree, the English wins.

A.7  How to cite this handbook
If you quote or paraphrase this handbook in a research paper, policy note, or software
documentation, please cite it as:

Suggested citation: TEKSOMA Technologies (2026). The NACE Handbook - a plain-language
companion to NACE Rev. 2.1. NACEBridge, first edition. https://nacebridge.eu/handbook

Underlying source (always cite alongside): Eurostat (2025). NACE Rev. 2.1 -
Statistical classification of economic activities in the European Community.
Luxembourg: Publications Office of the European Union. KS-GQ-24-007-EN-N.

A.8  Corrections and contact
If you spot a paraphrase that materially differs from the primary source, an outdated
legal reference, or a broken citation link, please tell us. Corrections are applied to
the master English source, then re-translated into the other locales in the same
release.

Corrections: handbook@nacebridge.eu

Reuse questions: See the CC BY 4.0 licence link above.

Live version: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#attribution

  2026 TEKSOMA Technologies - nacebridge.eu - Reuses Eurostat NACE Rev. 2.1 under the EC reuse policy

Live: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#attribution Page 20 of 42

https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
https://nacebridge.eu/handbook
https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#attribution
https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#attribution
https://nacebridge.eu/handbook#attribution


NACEBridge - The NACE Handbook Appendix B - Institutions & data sources

APPENDIX B
INSTITUTIONS & DATA SOURCES
European and national statistical authorities referenced across the handbook.

B.1  European & international bodies
Commission - European Commission
European Commission - proposes EU legislation and, together with Eurostat, adopts the
implementing acts that update NACE.
Official source: https://commission.europa.eu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/commission

Council - Council of the European Union
Council of the European Union - represents member state governments and co-legislates
EU statistical regulations.
Official source: https://www.consilium.europa.eu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/council

EEA - European Economic Area
European Economic Area - extends the EU single market to Iceland, Liechtenstein and
Norway, which also apply NACE.
Official source: https://www.efta.int/eea
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/eea

EFTA - European Free Trade Association
European Free Trade Association - Iceland, Liechtenstein, Norway and Switzerland; EFTA
statistical offices align with NACE.
Official source: https://www.efta.int/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/efta

EU - European Union
European Union - the political and economic union whose member states use NACE as a
shared statistical language.
Official source: https://european-union.europa.eu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/eu

European Parliament - European Parliament
The EU's directly elected legislative body; co-legislates the regulations that make
NACE binding.
Official source: https://www.europarl.europa.eu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/european-parliament
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Eurostat - Eurostat - Statistical Office of the European Union
The statistical office of the European Union. Eurostat produces, maintains and
publishes NACE - the classification every EU member state uses to describe economic
activity.
Official source: https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/eurostat

OECD - Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development - uses ISIC-aligned
classifications for cross-country economic statistics.
Official source: https://www.oecd.org/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/oecd

UN - United Nations Statistics Division
United Nations Statistics Division - custodian of ISIC, the global reference
classification NACE is derived from.
Official source: https://unstats.un.org/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/un

B.2  National statistical institutes
CBS - Centraal Bureau voor de Statistiek (NL)
Centraal Bureau voor de Statistiek - the Netherlands' national statistical institute;
publishes SBI.
Official source: https://www.cbs.nl/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/cbs

CSB - Centrala statistikas parvalde (LV)
Centrala statistikas parvalde - Latvia's Central Statistical Bureau; publishes NACE 2.
Official source: https://stat.gov.lv/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/csb

CSO - Central Statistics Office (Ireland) (IE)
Central Statistics Office - Ireland's national statistical office.
Official source: https://www.cso.ie/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/cso

CyStat - Cyprus Statistical Service (CY)
Cyprus Statistical Service - Cyprus' national statistical office.
Official source: https://www.cystat.gov.cy/
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On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/cystat

CZSO - Cesky statisticky urad (CZ)
Cesky statisticky urad - Czechia's national statistical office; publishes CZ-NACE.
Official source: https://www.czso.cz/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/czso

Destatis - Statistisches Bundesamt (DE)
Statistisches Bundesamt - Germany's federal statistical office; publishes WZ.
Official source: https://www.destatis.de/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/destatis

DST - Danmarks Statistik (DK)
Danmarks Statistik - Denmark's national statistical institute; publishes DB (Dansk
Branchekode).
Official source: https://www.dst.dk/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/dst

DZS - Drzavni zavod za statistiku (HR)
Drzavni zavod za statistiku - Croatia's national statistical bureau; publishes NKD.
Official source: https://dzs.gov.hr/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/dzs

ELSTAT - Hellenic Statistical Authority (GR)
Hellenic Statistical Authority - Greece's national statistical institute; publishes
STAKOD.
Official source: https://www.statistics.gr/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/elstat

GUS - G owny Urzad Statystyczny (PL)
G owny Urzad Statystyczny - Poland's central statistical office; publishes PKD.
Official source: https://stat.gov.pl/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/gus

INE - Instituto Nacional de Estatistica (Portugal) (PT)
Instituto Nacional de Estatistica - Portugal's national statistical institute;
publishes CAE.
Official source: https://www.ine.pt/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/ine
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INE-ES - Instituto Nacional de Estadistica (Spain) (ES)
Instituto Nacional de Estadistica - Spain's national statistical institute; publishes
CNAE.
Official source: https://www.ine.es/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/ine-es

INS - Institutul National de Statistica (Romania) (RO)
Institutul National de Statistica - Romania's national institute of statistics;
publishes CAEN.
Official source: https://insse.ro/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/ins

INSEE - Institut national de la statistique et des etudes economiques (FR)
Institut national de la statistique et des etudes economiques - France's national
statistical institute; publishes NAF.
Official source: https://www.insee.fr/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/insee

ISTAT - Istituto Nazionale di Statistica (IT)
Istituto Nazionale di Statistica - Italy's national statistical institute; publishes
ATECO.
Official source: https://www.istat.it/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/istat

KSH - Kozponti Statisztikai Hivatal (HU)
Kozponti Statisztikai Hivatal - Hungary's central statistical office; publishes TEAOR.
Official source: https://www.ksh.hu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/ksh

LSD - Lietuvos statistikos departamentas (LT)
Lietuvos statistikos departamentas - Lithuania's statistics office; publishes EVRK.
Official source: https://www.stat.gov.lt/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/lsd

NSI -                                   (Bulgaria) (BG)
                                  - Bulgaria's national statistical institute;
publishes KID.
Official source: https://www.nsi.bg/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/nsi
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NSO - National Statistics Office (Malta) (MT)
National Statistics Office - Malta's national statistical office.
Official source: https://nso.gov.mt/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/nso

SCB - Statistiska centralbyran (SE)
Statistiska centralbyran - Sweden's national statistical institute; publishes SNI.
Official source: https://www.scb.se/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/scb

SSB - Statistisk sentralbyra (NO)
Statistisk sentralbyra - Norway's national statistical institute (EEA); publishes
SN2007.
Official source: https://www.ssb.no/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/ssb

STAT - Statistik Austria (AT)
Statistik Austria - Austria's national statistical institute; publishes ONACE.
Official source: https://www.statistik.at/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/stat

STAT.FI - Tilastokeskus (Statistics Finland) (FI)
Tilastokeskus - Finland's national statistical institute; publishes TOL.
Official source: https://www.stat.fi/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/stat-fi

STATBEL - Statbel (BE)
Statbel - Belgium's national statistical office; publishes NACE-BEL.
Official source: https://statbel.fgov.be/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/statbel

STATEC - Institut national de la statistique et des etudes economiques du Luxembourg
(LU)
Institut national de la statistique et des etudes economiques du Luxembourg -
publishes NACE-LUX.
Official source: https://statistiques.public.lu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/statec

Statistikaamet - Statistics Estonia (EE)
Statistics Estonia - Estonia's national statistical office; publishes EMTAK.
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Official source: https://www.stat.ee/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/statistikaamet

SURS - Statisticni urad Republike Slovenije (SI)
Statisticni urad Republike Slovenije - Slovenia's statistical office; publishes SKD.
Official source: https://www.stat.si/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/surs

SUSR - Statisticky urad Slovenskej republiky (SK)
Statisticky urad Slovenskej republiky - Slovakia's statistical office; publishes SK
NACE.
Official source: https://slovak.statistics.sk/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/susr

Tilastokeskus - Tilastokeskus (Statistics Finland) (FI)
Statistics Finland - Finland's national statistical institute; publishes TOL.
Official source: https://www.stat.fi/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions/tilastokeskus

Live index: https://nacebridge.eu/institutions
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APPENDIX C
NATIONAL & EU CLASSIFICATIONS
Activity classifications aligned with NACE Rev. 2.1 at the 4-digit class level.

C.1  European reference
CPA - Statistical Classification of Products by Activity
Statistical Classification of Products by Activity - the EU classification of goods
and services, derived from and aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/cpa
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/cpa

ISIC - International Standard Industrial Classification of All Economic Activities
International Standard Industrial Classification - the United Nations global backbone
that NACE aligns to at the first two digits.
Official source: https://unstats.un.org/unsd/classifications/Econ/isic
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/isic

NACE - Statistical Classification of Economic Activities in the European Community
The EU's official classification of economic activities. NACE is the backbone every
national system in the Union anchors to at the 4-digit class.
Official source: https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/nace
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/nace

NACEBridge - NACEBridge
Open bridge between NACE and national activity classifications, maintained by TEKSOMA.
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/nacebridge

NAICS - North American Industry Classification System
North American Industry Classification System - used by the US, Canada and Mexico; a
common counterpart when comparing EU and North American data.
Official source: https://www.census.gov/naics/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/naics

PRODCOM - Community Production statistics
EU industrial production statistics - a detailed product list linked to NACE
manufacturing classes.
Official source: https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/prodcom
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/prodcom

SIC - Standard Industrial Classification (UK)
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Standard Industrial Classification - the UK activity classification, historically
aligned with NACE Rev. 2.
Official source: https://resources.companieshouse.gov.uk/sic/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/sic

C.2  National classifications
ATECO - Classificazione delle attivita economiche (IT)
Classificazione delle attivita economiche - the Italian national activity
classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.istat.it/it/archivio/17888
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/ateco

CAE - Classificacao Portuguesa das Actividades Economicas (PT)
Portugal's national activity classification, published by INE. Aligned with NACE at
the 4-digit level.
Official source: https://www.ine.pt/xportal/xmain?xpid=INE&xpgid=ine_cnactividades
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/cae

CAEN - Clasificarea Activitatilor din Economia Nationala (RO)
Clasificarea Activitatilor din Economia Nationala - the Romanian national activity
classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://insse.ro/cms/en/content/caen-classification
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/caen

CNAE - Clasificacion Nacional de Actividades Economicas (ES)
Clasificacion Nacional de Actividades Economicas - the Spanish national activity
classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source:
https://www.ine.es/dyngs/INEbase/es/operacion.htm?c=Estadistica_C&cid=1254736177032
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/cnae

CZ-NACE - CZ-NACE (CZ)
CZ-NACE - the Czech implementation of NACE.
Official source:
https://www.czso.cz/csu/czso/klasifikace_ekonomickych_cinnosti_cz_nace
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/cz-nace

DB07 - Dansk Branchekode 2007 (DK)
Dansk Branchekode 2007 - the Danish national activity classification, aligned with
NACE.
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Official source:
https://www.dst.dk/da/Statistik/dokumentation/nomenklaturer/dansk-branchekode-2007
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/db07

EMTAK - Eesti majanduse tegevusalade klassifikaator (EE)
Eesti majanduse tegevusalade klassifikaator - the Estonian national activity
classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://emtak.rik.ee/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/emtak

EVRK - Ekonomines veiklos rusiu klasifikatorius (LT)
Ekonomines veiklos rusiu klasifikatorius - the Lithuanian national activity
classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://osp.stat.gov.lt/klasifikatoriu-katalogas
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/evrk

KID -    -2008 (BG)
   -2008 - the Bulgarian national activity classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.nsi.bg/en/content/2660/kid-2008
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/kid

NACE-BEL - NACE-BEL (BE)
NACE-BEL - the Belgian implementation of NACE with additional national detail.
Official source:
https://statbel.fgov.be/nl/over-statbel/methodologie/classificaties/nace-bel-2008
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/nace-bel

NAF - Nomenclature d'activites francaise (FR)
France's national activity classification, published by INSEE. Aligned with NACE at
the 4-digit level with a 5-character format.
Official source: https://www.insee.fr/fr/information/2406147
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/naf

NKD - Nacionalna klasifikacija djelatnosti (HR)
Nacionalna klasifikacija djelatnosti - the Croatian national activity classification,
aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://dzs.gov.hr/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/nkd

ONACE - Osterreichische NACE (AT)
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Osterreichische NACE - the Austrian implementation of NACE.
Official source: https://www.statistik.at/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/onace

PKD - Polska Klasyfikacja Dzia alnosci (PL)
Polska Klasyfikacja Dzia alnosci - the Polish national activity classification,
aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://stat.gov.pl/Klasyfikacje/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/pkd

SBI - Standaard Bedrijfsindeling (NL)
Standaard Bedrijfsindeling - the Dutch national activity classification, aligned with
NACE.
Official source:
https://www.cbs.nl/nl-nl/onze-diensten/methoden/classificaties/activiteiten/sbi-2008-standaard-bedrijfsindeling-2008
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/sbi

SK NACE - SK NACE (SK)
SK NACE - the Slovak implementation of NACE.
Official source: https://slovak.statistics.sk/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/sk-nace

SKD - Standardna klasifikacija dejavnosti (SI)
Standardna klasifikacija dejavnosti - the Slovenian national activity classification,
aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.stat.si/StatWeb/en/Methods/Classifications
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/skd

SN2007 - Standard for n ringsgruppering 2007 (NO)
Standard for n ringsgruppering - the Norwegian national activity classification,
aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.ssb.no/klass/klassifikasjoner/6
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/sn2007

SNI - Svensk naringsgrensindelning (SE)
Svensk naringsgrensindelning - the Swedish national activity classification, aligned
with NACE.
Official source:
https://www.scb.se/dokumentation/klassifikationer-och-standarder/standard-for-svensk-naringsgrensindelning-sni/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/sni
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STAKOD - STAKOD (GR)
STAKOD - the Greek national activity classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.statistics.gr/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/stakod

TEAOR - TEAOR (HU)
TEAOR - the Hungarian national activity classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.ksh.hu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/teaor

TOL - Toimialaluokitus (FI)
Toimialaluokitus - the Finnish national activity classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.stat.fi/fi/luokitukset/toimiala/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/tol

WZ - Klassifikation der Wirtschaftszweige (DE)
Klassifikation der Wirtschaftszweige - the German national activity classification,
aligned with NACE.
Official source:
https://www.destatis.de/DE/Methoden/Klassifikationen/Gueter-Wirtschaftsklassifikationen/klassifikation-wz-2008.html
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies/wz

Live index: https://nacebridge.eu/taxonomies
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APPENDIX D
GLOSSARY
Classifications, EU bodies and national statistical institutes referenced across the handbook.

D.1  NACEBridge steward
TEKSOMA | MARKET INTELLIGENCE - Market-intelligence practice of the TEKSOMA group;
curates the European classification datasets that feed NACEBridge.
Official source: https://mi.teksoma.com
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-t-ksom-m-rket-int-lligence

TEKSOMA Holding - Short name for TEKSOMA Holding, Lda. - the Portuguese group that
stewards NACEBridge.
Official source: https://teksoma.com
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-t-ksom-holding

TEKSOMA Holding, Lda. - Portuguese parent company (Lisbon) that owns and stewards the
NACEBridge open-data project.
Official source: https://teksoma.com
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-t-ksom-holding-lda

TEKSOMA Technologies - Technology arm of TEKSOMA Holding; builds, hosts and maintains
the NACEBridge platform and its public APIs.
Official source: https://tech.teksoma.com
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-t-ksom-technologies

D.2  Classifications
CPA - Statistical Classification of Products by Activity - the EU classification of
goods and services, derived from and aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/cpa
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-cpa

ISIC - International Standard Industrial Classification - the United Nations global
backbone that NACE aligns to at the first two digits.
Official source: https://unstats.un.org/unsd/classifications/Econ/isic
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-isic

NACE - Statistical Classification of Economic Activities in the European Community -
the EU standard for describing what a business does.
Official source: https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/nace
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-nace
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NACEBridge - Open bridge between NACE and national activity classifications,
maintained by TEKSOMA.
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-nacebridge

NAICS - North American Industry Classification System - used by the US, Canada and
Mexico; a common counterpart when comparing EU and North American data.
Official source: https://www.census.gov/naics/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-naics

PRODCOM - EU industrial production statistics - a detailed product list linked to NACE
manufacturing classes.
Official source: https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/prodcom
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-prodcom

SIC - Standard Industrial Classification - the UK activity classification,
historically aligned with NACE Rev. 2.
Official source: https://resources.companieshouse.gov.uk/sic/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-sic

D.3  EU institutions
Commission - European Commission - proposes EU legislation and, together with
Eurostat, adopts the implementing acts that update NACE.
Official source: https://commission.europa.eu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-commission

Council - Council of the European Union - represents member state governments and
co-legislates EU statistical regulations.
Official source: https://www.consilium.europa.eu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-council

EEA - European Economic Area - extends the EU single market to Iceland, Liechtenstein
and Norway, which also apply NACE.
Official source: https://www.efta.int/eea
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-eea

EFTA - European Free Trade Association - Iceland, Liechtenstein, Norway and
Switzerland; EFTA statistical offices align with NACE.
Official source: https://www.efta.int/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-efta
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EU - European Union - the political and economic union whose member states use NACE as
a shared statistical language.
Official source: https://european-union.europa.eu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-eu

European Parliament - The EU's directly elected legislative body; co-legislates the
regulations that make NACE binding.
Official source: https://www.europarl.europa.eu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-european-parliament

Eurostat - The statistical office of the European Union - publishes and maintains
NACE.
Official source: https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-eurostat

OECD - Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development - uses ISIC-aligned
classifications for cross-country economic statistics.
Official source: https://www.oecd.org/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-oecd

UN - United Nations Statistics Division - custodian of ISIC, the global reference
classification NACE is derived from.
Official source: https://unstats.un.org/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-un

D.4  National statistical institutes
CBS - Centraal Bureau voor de Statistiek - the Netherlands' national statistical
institute; publishes SBI.
Official source: https://www.cbs.nl/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-cbs

CSB - Centrala statistikas parvalde - Latvia's Central Statistical Bureau; publishes
NACE 2.
Official source: https://stat.gov.lv/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-csb

CSO - Central Statistics Office - Ireland's national statistical office.
Official source: https://www.cso.ie/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-cso
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CyStat - Cyprus Statistical Service - Cyprus' national statistical office.
Official source: https://www.cystat.gov.cy/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-cystat

CZSO - Cesky statisticky urad - Czechia's national statistical office; publishes
CZ-NACE.
Official source: https://www.czso.cz/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-czso

Destatis - Statistisches Bundesamt - Germany's federal statistical office; publishes
WZ.
Official source: https://www.destatis.de/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-destatis

DESTATIS - Statistisches Bundesamt - Germany's federal statistical office; publishes
WZ.
Official source: https://www.destatis.de/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-destatis

DST - Danmarks Statistik - Denmark's national statistical institute; publishes DB
(Dansk Branchekode).
Official source: https://www.dst.dk/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-dst

DZS - Drzavni zavod za statistiku - Croatia's national statistical bureau; publishes
NKD.
Official source: https://dzs.gov.hr/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-dzs

ELSTAT - Hellenic Statistical Authority - Greece's national statistical institute;
publishes STAKOD.
Official source: https://www.statistics.gr/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-elstat

GUS - G owny Urzad Statystyczny - Poland's central statistical office; publishes PKD.
Official source: https://stat.gov.pl/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-gus

INE - Instituto Nacional de Estatistica - Portugal's national statistical institute;
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publishes CAE.
Official source: https://www.ine.pt/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-ine

INE-ES - Instituto Nacional de Estadistica - Spain's national statistical institute;
publishes CNAE.
Official source: https://www.ine.es/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-ine-es

INS - Institutul National de Statistica - Romania's national institute of statistics;
publishes CAEN.
Official source: https://insse.ro/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-ins

INSEE - Institut national de la statistique et des etudes economiques - France's
national statistical institute; publishes NAF.
Official source: https://www.insee.fr/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-insee

ISTAT - Istituto Nazionale di Statistica - Italy's national statistical institute;
publishes ATECO.
Official source: https://www.istat.it/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-istat

KSH - Kozponti Statisztikai Hivatal - Hungary's central statistical office; publishes
TEAOR.
Official source: https://www.ksh.hu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-ksh

LSD - Lietuvos statistikos departamentas - Lithuania's statistics office; publishes
EVRK.
Official source: https://www.stat.gov.lt/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-lsd

NSI -                                   - Bulgaria's national statistical institute;
publishes KID.
Official source: https://www.nsi.bg/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-nsi

NSO - National Statistics Office - Malta's national statistical office.
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Official source: https://nso.gov.mt/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-nso

SCB - Statistiska centralbyran - Sweden's national statistical institute; publishes
SNI.
Official source: https://www.scb.se/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-scb

SSB - Statistisk sentralbyra - Norway's national statistical institute (EEA);
publishes SN2007.
Official source: https://www.ssb.no/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-ssb

STAT - Statistik Austria - Austria's national statistical institute; publishes ONACE.
Official source: https://www.statistik.at/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-stat

STAT.FI - Tilastokeskus - Finland's national statistical institute; publishes TOL.
Official source: https://www.stat.fi/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-stat-fi

STATBEL - Statbel - Belgium's national statistical office; publishes NACE-BEL.
Official source: https://statbel.fgov.be/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-statbel

STATEC - Institut national de la statistique et des etudes economiques du Luxembourg -
publishes NACE-LUX.
Official source: https://statistiques.public.lu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-statec

Statistikaamet - Statistics Estonia - Estonia's national statistical office; publishes
EMTAK.
Official source: https://www.stat.ee/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-statistikaamet

SURS - Statisticni urad Republike Slovenije - Slovenia's statistical office; publishes
SKD.
Official source: https://www.stat.si/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-surs
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SUSR - Statisticky urad Slovenskej republiky - Slovakia's statistical office;
publishes SK NACE.
Official source: https://slovak.statistics.sk/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-susr

Tilastokeskus - Statistics Finland - Finland's national statistical institute;
publishes TOL.
Official source: https://www.stat.fi/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-tilastokeskus

D.5  National classifications
ATECO - Classificazione delle attivita economiche - the Italian national activity
classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.istat.it/it/archivio/17888
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-ateco

CAE - Classificacao Portuguesa das Actividades Economicas - the Portuguese national
activity classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.ine.pt/xportal/xmain?xpid=INE&xpgid=ine_cnactividades
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-cae

CAEN - Clasificarea Activitatilor din Economia Nationala - the Romanian national
activity classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://insse.ro/cms/en/content/caen-classification
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-caen

CNAE - Clasificacion Nacional de Actividades Economicas - the Spanish national
activity classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source:
https://www.ine.es/dyngs/INEbase/es/operacion.htm?c=Estadistica_C&cid=1254736177032
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-cnae

CZ-NACE - CZ-NACE - the Czech implementation of NACE.
Official source:
https://www.czso.cz/csu/czso/klasifikace_ekonomickych_cinnosti_cz_nace
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-cz-nace

DB07 - Dansk Branchekode 2007 - the Danish national activity classification, aligned
with NACE.
Official source:
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https://www.dst.dk/da/Statistik/dokumentation/nomenklaturer/dansk-branchekode-2007
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-db07

EMTAK - Eesti majanduse tegevusalade klassifikaator - the Estonian national activity
classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://emtak.rik.ee/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-emtak

EVRK - Ekonomines veiklos rusiu klasifikatorius - the Lithuanian national activity
classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://osp.stat.gov.lt/klasifikatoriu-katalogas
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-evrk

KID -    -2008 - the Bulgarian national activity classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.nsi.bg/en/content/2660/kid-2008
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-kid

NACE-BEL - NACE-BEL - the Belgian implementation of NACE with additional national
detail.
Official source:
https://statbel.fgov.be/nl/over-statbel/methodologie/classificaties/nace-bel-2008
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-nace-bel

NAF - Nomenclature d'activites francaise - the French national activity
classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.insee.fr/fr/information/2406147
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-naf

NKD - Nacionalna klasifikacija djelatnosti - the Croatian national activity
classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://dzs.gov.hr/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-nkd

ONACE - Osterreichische NACE - the Austrian implementation of NACE.
Official source: https://www.statistik.at/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-onace

PKD - Polska Klasyfikacja Dzia alnosci - the Polish national activity classification,
aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://stat.gov.pl/Klasyfikacje/
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On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-pkd

SBI - Standaard Bedrijfsindeling - the Dutch national activity classification, aligned
with NACE.
Official source:
https://www.cbs.nl/nl-nl/onze-diensten/methoden/classificaties/activiteiten/sbi-2008-standaard-bedrijfsindeling-2008
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-sbi

SK NACE - SK NACE - the Slovak implementation of NACE.
Official source: https://slovak.statistics.sk/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-sk-nace

SKD - Standardna klasifikacija dejavnosti - the Slovenian national activity
classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.stat.si/StatWeb/en/Methods/Classifications
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-skd

SN2007 - Standard for n ringsgruppering - the Norwegian national activity
classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.ssb.no/klass/klassifikasjoner/6
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-sn2007

SNI - Svensk naringsgrensindelning - the Swedish national activity classification,
aligned with NACE.
Official source:
https://www.scb.se/dokumentation/klassifikationer-och-standarder/standard-for-svensk-naringsgrensindelning-sni/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-sni

STAKOD - STAKOD - the Greek national activity classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.statistics.gr/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-stakod

TEAOR - TEAOR - the Hungarian national activity classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source: https://www.ksh.hu/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-teaor

TOL - Toimialaluokitus - the Finnish national activity classification, aligned with
NACE.
Official source: https://www.stat.fi/fi/luokitukset/toimiala/
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-tol
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WZ - Klassifikation der Wirtschaftszweige - the German national activity
classification, aligned with NACE.
Official source:
https://www.destatis.de/DE/Methoden/Klassifikationen/Gueter-Wirtschaftsklassifikationen/klassifikation-wz-2008.html
On NACEBridge: https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary#term-wz

Live glossary (search + jump anchors): https://nacebridge.eu/handbook/glossary
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